
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

AGENDA
AUGUST 1, 2019

6:00 P.M.

Roll Call.

Approval of minutes – July 10, 2019

(1) D-0819-13 Harris Doyle Homes is requesting Landscape Review for the 
property located at Cahaba Heights Rd. The purpose of this 
request is for a new landscaping plan. The property is owned by 
Harris Doyle Homes and is zoned Vestavia Hills R-9.

(2) D-0819-14 Mark Hancock is requesting Landscape Review, Architectural 
Review, and Final Review of Materials for the property located 
at 2828 Old 280 Ct. The purpose of this request is for a new 
building. The property is owned by Mark Hancock and is zoned 
Vestavia Hills O-1.

(3) D-0819-15 Vestavia MZL, LLC is requesting Lighting Review for the 
property located at 608-680 Montgomery Hwy. The purpose of 
this request is for a new lighting plan. The property is owned by 
Vestavia MZL, LLC and is zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

Time of Adjournment.



Design Review Board Minutes  

Page | 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD

MINUTES

JULY 10, 2019

The Vestavia Hills Landscape and Architectural Control Board met in a regular 
session on this date at 6:00 PM.  The roll was called with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Robert Thompson, Chairman
Rip Weaver
Mae Coshatt
David Giddens
Chris Pugh
Jeff Slaton
Joe Ellis

MEMBERS ABSENT:

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes for May 2, 2019 were presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes for May 2, 2019 was 
made by Mrs. Coshatt and 2nd was by Mr. Giddens.  Motion as carried on a 
voice vote as follows:

Mrs. Coshatt– yes Mr. Pugh – yes
Mr. Giddens – yes Mr. Weaver – yes
Mr. Slaton – yes Mr. Ellis– yes
Mr. Thompson – yes Motion carries.

Final Review of Materials

D-0719-12 City of Vestavia Hills is requesting Final Review of Materials for 
the property located at 2925 Columbiana Rd. The purpose of this 
request is for a renovation to an existing building. The property is 
owned by the City of Vestavia Hills and is zoned Vestavia Hills Inst-
1.

Mr. Garrison described the background of the request and stated it was the new pedestrian 
bridge.



Design Review Board Minutes  

Page | 2

Greg Gilchrist was present to explain the plan for Fire Station #2.

The Board agreed with the plan

MOTION Motion to approve Final Review of Materials for the property located at 
2925 Columbiana Rd was made by Mr. Giddens.  Second was made by Mr. 
Weaver.  Voice vote as follows:

Mrs. Coshatt– yes
Mr. Giddens – yes Mr. Weaver – yes
Mr. Slaton – yes Mr. Ellis– yes
Mr. Thompson – yes Motion carries.

Architectural Review & Final Review of Materials

D-0719-11 8001 Liberty Park, LLC is requesting Architectural Review and 
Final Review of Materials for the property located at 8001 Liberty 
Pkwy. The purpose of this request is for a new building. The 
property is owned by 8001 Liberty Park, LLC and is zoned Vestavia 
Hills PUD-PB.

Mr. Garrison described the background of the request. 

Chris Pugh recused himself due to his firm working on the project.

Lauren Barrett was present to explain the request

The Board agreed with the plan, with some changes to the landscape plan.

MOTION Motion to approve Preliminary Review for the property located at 8001 
Liberty Pkwy. was made by Mr. Ellis.  Second was made by Mr. Weaver.
Voice vote as follows:

Mrs. Coshatt– yes Mr. Giddens – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mr. Slaton – yes
Mr. Ellis– yes Mr. Thompson – yes 
Motion carries

MOTION Motion to approve Architectural Review & Final Review of Materials for 
the property located at 8001 Liberty Pkwy. was made by Mr. Ellis.  Second 
was made by Mr. Weaver.  Voice vote as follows:

Mrs. Coshatt– yes Mr. Giddens – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mr. Slaton – yes
Mr. Ellis– yes Mr. Thompson – yes 
Motion carries



Design Review Board Minutes  

Page | 3

_______________________________
Conrad Garrison
City Planner

























Th
e 

Li
nd

se
y 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
| D

es
ig

n 
Re

vi
ew

 P
ac

ke
t

28
28

 O
ld

 2
80

 C
ou

rt
Ve

st
av

ia
 H

ill
s,

 A
la

ba
m

a 
35

24
3

1 J
ul

y 
20

19



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

Ex
te

ri
or

 R
en

de
ri

ng



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

H
ar

di
e 

La
p 

Si
di

ng
 (S

m
oo

th
)

C
ol

or
: S

W
 7

04
7 

“P
or

po
is

e”

St
ru

ct
ur

al
 S

te
el

C
ol

or
: S

W
 7

06
9 

“I
ro

n 
O

re
”

B
oa

rd
 F

or
m

ed
 C

on
cr

et
e

C
ol

or
: R

aw
/U

nfi
ni

sh
ed

G
ut

te
rs

 &
 D

ow
ns

po
ut

s
C

ol
or

: S
W

 7
06

9 
“I

ro
n 

O
re

”

Pa
in

te
d 

B
ri

ck
C

ol
or

: S
W

 7
00

8 
“A

la
ba

st
er

”

A
no

di
ze

d 
A

lu
m

in
um

 S
to

re
fr

on
t

C
ol

or
: D

ar
k 

B
ro

nz
e

G
lu

la
m

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
/T

&
G

 D
ec

ki
ng

C
ol

or
: S

ea
le

d

M
at

er
ia

l P
al

et
te



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

Ex
te

ri
or

 E
le

va
tio

ns



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

Pl
an



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

90°0'0"'

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

C
al

l b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

di
g.

D
ia

l 8
11

O
r C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1

S
IT

E
 D

A
T

A
 T

A
B

LE

A

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
N

O
T

E
S

S
IT

E
 L

A
Y

O
U

T
 N

O
T

E
S

LA
Y

O
U

T
 L

E
G

E
N

D

VI
CI

N
IT

Y 
M

AP

R
IV

ER
 G

R
AN

D
 D

R
.

SI
TE

R
IV

ER
 G

R
AN

D
 C

IR
.

COLONY PARK DR.

CAHABA R
IV

ER R
D.

O
LD

 2
80

 C
T.

V
E

S
T

A
V

IA
 H

IL
LS

, A
LA

B
A

M
A

B

B

C

D

E

E

E

E
F

G
H

I

J

K

K

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
:

R
ev

is
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
:

45
17

 P
in

e 
Tr

ee
 C

irc
le

Ve
st

av
ia

 H
ills

, A
L,

 3
52

43
20

5.
49

7.
32

84

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

& 
D

es
ig

n

G
on

za
le

z-
St

re
ng

th
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

To
dd

 T
ho

m
ps

on
p:

 2
05

.9
42

.2
48

6
e:

 tt
ho

m
ps

on
@

go
nz

al
ez

-s
tre

ng
th

.c
om

G
al

lo
w

ay
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Ke
ith

 G
al

lo
w

ay
p:

 2
05

.2
12

.4
73

0
e:

 k
ga

llo
w

ay
@

ga
llo

w
ay

an
da

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

BB
G

&S
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s
La

w
re

nc
e 

Bo
w

ne
ss

p:
 2

05
.8

37
.3

88
6

e:
 jb

ow
ne

ss
@

bb
gs

.p
ro

R
ay

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

G
ro

up
C

on
ta

ct
p:

 2
05

.9
87

.0
04

7
e: BB

G
&S

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

La
w

re
nc

e 
Bo

w
ne

ss
p:

 2
05

.8
37

.3
88

6
e:

 jb
ow

ne
ss

@
bb

gs
.p

ro 5/
29

/2
01

9 
2:

32
:0

0 
PM

SI
TE

 L
AY

O
U

T 
PL

AN

19
03

28
28

 O
ld

 2
80

 C
ou

rt
Ve

st
av

ia
 H

ills
, A

la
ba

m
a 

35
24

3

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
et

 fo
r E

ng
in

ee
rs

L

M

N F

O

P
LA

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
N

LY

Si
te

 L
ay

ou
t



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

U
N

D
IS

TU
R
B
ED

 A
R
EA

51
8.

00
51

8.
00

51
8.

00

51
7.

50

51
7.

76
51

7.
76

51
8.

00

51
7.

76
51

7.
76

51
7.

88

51
7.

26
51

7.
38

51
7.

07

51
7.

07

51
6.

98

51
6.

89
51

7.
08

51
7.

26

51
7.

44

51
7.

67

51
7.

55

51
7.

50

51
7.

25 51
7.

00

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

C
al

l b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

di
g.

D
ia

l 8
11

O
r C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1

A

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 L
E

G
E

N
D

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
:

R
ev

is
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
:

45
17

 P
in

e 
Tr

ee
 C

irc
le

Ve
st

av
ia

 H
ills

, A
L,

 3
52

43
20

5.
49

7.
32

84

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

& 
D

es
ig

n

G
on

za
le

z-
St

re
ng

th
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

To
dd

 T
ho

m
ps

on
p:

 2
05

.9
42

.2
48

6
e:

 tt
ho

m
ps

on
@

go
nz

al
ez

-s
tre

ng
th

.c
om

G
al

lo
w

ay
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Ke
ith

 G
al

lo
w

ay
p:

 2
05

.2
12

.4
73

0
e:

 k
ga

llo
w

ay
@

ga
llo

w
ay

an
da

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

BB
G

&S
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s
La

w
re

nc
e 

Bo
w

ne
ss

p:
 2

05
.8

37
.3

88
6

e:
 jb

ow
ne

ss
@

bb
gs

.p
ro

R
ay

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

G
ro

up
C

on
ta

ct
p:

 2
05

.9
87

.0
04

7
e: BB

G
&S

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

La
w

re
nc

e 
Bo

w
ne

ss
p:

 2
05

.8
37

.3
88

6
e:

 jb
ow

ne
ss

@
bb

gs
.p

ro 5/
29

/2
01

9 
2:

32
:0

0 
PM

G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

19
03

28
28

 O
ld

 2
80

 C
ou

rt
Ve

st
av

ia
 H

ills
, A

la
ba

m
a 

35
24

3

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
et

 fo
r E

ng
in

ee
rs

A

B
C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

P
LA

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
N

LY

M

G
ra

di
ng

 &
 D

ra
in

ag
e



w
w

w
.c

oe
nd

ea
vo

r.c
om

U
N

D
IS

TU
R
B
ED

 A
R
EA

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

C
al

l b
ef

or
e 

yo
u 

di
g.

D
ia

l 8
11

O
r C

al
l 8

00
-2

82
-7

41
1

O
FF

SI
TE

 S
TO

R
M

 W
AT

ER
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T

1.
O

FF
SI

TE
 S

TO
R

M
 W

AT
ER

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 IN

 IT
S 

O
R

IG
IN

AL
 L

O
C

AT
IO

N
 U

N
TI

L 
SU

C
H

 T
IM

E
TH

E 
PE

R
IM

ET
ER

 C
U

T-
O

FF
 D

IT
C

H
ES

 H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 IN

ST
AL

LE
D

 R
O

U
TI

N
G

 T
H

E 
O

FF
SI

TE
 W

AT
ER

AR
O

U
N

D
 T

H
E 

D
IS

TU
R

BE
D

 A
R

EA
 (S

IT
E)

.

Pl
ot

 D
at

e:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dd
re

ss
:

R
ev

is
io

n 
Sc

he
du

le
:

45
17

 P
in

e 
Tr

ee
 C

irc
le

Ve
st

av
ia

 H
ills

, A
L,

 3
52

43
20

5.
49

7.
32

84

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

& 
D

es
ig

n

G
on

za
le

z-
St

re
ng

th
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

To
dd

 T
ho

m
ps

on
p:

 2
05

.9
42

.2
48

6
e:

 tt
ho

m
ps

on
@

go
nz

al
ez

-s
tre

ng
th

.c
om

G
al

lo
w

ay
 &

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Ke
ith

 G
al

lo
w

ay
p:

 2
05

.2
12

.4
73

0
e:

 k
ga

llo
w

ay
@

ga
llo

w
ay

an
da

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

BB
G

&S
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
C

on
su

lta
nt

s
La

w
re

nc
e 

Bo
w

ne
ss

p:
 2

05
.8

37
.3

88
6

e:
 jb

ow
ne

ss
@

bb
gs

.p
ro

R
ay

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

G
ro

up
C

on
ta

ct
p:

 2
05

.9
87

.0
04

7
e: BB

G
&S

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

La
w

re
nc

e 
Bo

w
ne

ss
p:

 2
05

.8
37

.3
88

6
e:

 jb
ow

ne
ss

@
bb

gs
.p

ro 5/
29

/2
01

9 
2:

32
:0

0 
PM

ER
O

SI
O

N
 C

O
N

TR
O

L 
PH

AS
E 

I

19
03

28
28

 O
ld

 2
80

 C
ou

rt
Ve

st
av

ia
 H

ills
, A

la
ba

m
a 

35
24

3

Pr
og

re
ss

 S
et

 fo
r E

ng
in

ee
rs

P
LA

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

 O
N

LY

Er
os

io
n 

C
on

tr
ol

 P
la

n







P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

D
at

e:

S
ca

le
:

6/
5/

20
19

C
lie

nt
:

P
ro

je
ct

:
1"

 =
 3

0 
ft

.

11
21

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 7
4 

S
O

U
T

H
P

E
A

C
H

T
R

E
E

 C
IT

Y
 G

A
 3

02
69

F
ax

 N
um

be
r 

: (
77

0)
 4

86
-4

59
9

E
m

ai
l A

dd
re

ss
 :

 m
kt

-li
gh

tin
ga

pp
lic

at
io

ns
@

ea
to

n.
co

m

E
A

T
O

N

19
00

80
0B

.A
G

I

70
0 

M
on

tg
om

er
y 

H
ig

hw
ay

V
es

ta
vi

a 
H

ill
s,

 A
L

H
al

 S
aw

ye
r

S
ou

th
C

on

JR V
oi

ce
 N

um
be

r 
: (

77
0)

 4
86

-4
75

1

0
2
5

5
0

7
5

1
0
0

1
2
5

1
5
0

1
7
5

2
0
0

2
2
5

2
5
0

2
7
5

3
0
0

3
2
5

3
5
0

3
7
5

4
0
0

4
2
5

4
5
0

4
7
5

5
0
0

5
2
5

5
5
0

5
7
5

6
0
0

6
2
5

6
5
0

6
7
5

7
0
0

7
2
5

7
5
0

7
7
5

8
0
0

8
2
5

8
5
0

8
7
5

9
0
0

9
2
5

9
5
0

9
7
5

1
0
0
0

1
0
2
5

1
0
5
0

6
5
0

6
2
5

6
0
0

5
7
5

5
5
0

5
2
5

5
0
0

4
7
5

4
5
0

4
2
5

4
0
0

3
7
5

3
5
0

3
2
5

3
0
0

2
7
5

2
5
0

2
2
5

2
0
0

1
7
5

1
5
0

1
2
5

1
0
0

7
5

5
0

2
5

0

0
4
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1 M
H
:
 
3
0

1
1

M
H
:
 
3
0

2 C
7
5
 
9
03 M
H
:
 
3
0

0
4
-
5
W
Q

4 M
H
:
 
3
0

0
4
-
5
W
Q

U
1
0
0

5 M
H
:
 
3
0

1
1

U
1
0
0
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

6

1
1 M
H
:
 
3
0

7 C
7
5
 
9
0

1
1C
7
5
 
9
0

M
H
:
 
3
0

8

9 0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
0

M
H
:
 
3
0

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
1

0
4
-
5
W
Q

1
1

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
2

C
7
5
 
9
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
3

M
H
:
 
3
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
4

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
5

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
6

M
H
:
 
3
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
7

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
8

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

1
9

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

2
0

M
H
:
 
3
0

0
4
-
5
W
Q

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
1

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
2

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
3

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
4

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
5

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

M
H
:
 
3
0

2
6

2
7

M
H
:
 
3
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
1

2
8

M
H
:
 
3
0

U
1
0
0
 
2

1
1

2
9

M
H
:
 
3
0

U
1
0
0
 
2

5
.
7

5
.
4

3
.
1

2
.
7

2
.
5

3
.
3

3
.
9

4
.
6

4
.
0

5
.
5

4
.
6

5
.
8

5
.
1

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
4

4
.
2

4
.
1

5
.
1

5
.
7

4
.
4

4
.
4

4
.
5

4
.
6

4
.
8

5
.
0

5
.
2

3
.
6

5
.
5

4
.
3

5
.
9

6
.
1

6
.
2

6
.
2

6
.
1

5
.
9

5
.
6

5
.
1

5
.
4

7
.
5

7
.
7

7
.
7

7
.
7

7
.
8

8
.
0

8
.
0

7
.
9

4
.
1

7
.
7

7
.
2

7
.
2

6
.
7

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
9

5
.
8

5
.
6

8
.
4

7
.
9

6
.
9

4
.
6

4
.
6

4
.
9

5
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
1

6
.
4

6
.
7

7
.
7

7
.
0

7
.
5

6
.
8

6
.
7

6
.
6

6
.
6

6
.
7

6
.
9

7
.
0

4
.
1

6
.
9

3
.
5

4
.
9

5
.
0

5
.
0

4
.
1

4
.
0

4
.
1

4
.
1

6
.
4

3
.
7

3
.
8

3
.
5

3
.
6

3
.
7

4
.
0

4
.
4

4
.
8

5
.
2

4
.
4

3
.
9

5
.
3

5
.
5

5
.
6

5
.
9

6
.
1

6
.
3

6
.
5

6
.
5

6
.
5

4
.
8

5
.
8

4
.
4

4
.
8

4
.
2

3
.
7

3
.
2

2
.
6

2
.
5

3
.
2

6
.
7

6
.
2

5
.
5

7
.
3

7
.
1

6
.
8

6
.
5

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
9

5
.
8

5
.
7

7
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
3

5
.
1

4
.
9

4
.
7

5
.
4

5
.
8

7
.
3

6
.
9

6
.
9

6
.
9

6
.
8

6
.
5

6
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
3

7
.
3

7
.
0

7
.
4

7
.
6

7
.
8

7
.
8

7
.
6

7
.
4

7
.
3

7
.
3

4
.
5

6
.
6

5
.
7

5
.
5

4
.
9

5
.
1

5
.
6

6
.
0

6
.
3

6
.
5

4
.
8

6
.
2

4
.
8

5
.
1

4
.
5

3
.
9

3
.
5

3
.
1

2
.
6

2
.
2

2
.
7

6
.
4

5
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
2

6
.
1

6
.
0

5
.
8

5
.
6

5
.
6

4
.
8

5
.
3

4
.
9

5
.
2

5
.
1

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
7

4
.
7

4
.
7

5
.
4

6
.
9

6
.
8

7
.
0

7
.
0

6
.
9

6
.
8

6
.
8

6
.
7

3
.
3

6
.
7

6
.
2

7
.
2

7
.
4

7
.
8

8
.
2

8
.
3

8
.
2

8
.
2

1
.
6

6
.
6

5
.
3

7
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
2

6
.
6

6
.
9

6
.
6

6
.
0

5
.
8

6
.
6

5
.
2

6
.
4

5
.
5

5
.
7

5
.
9

5
.
9

6
.
0

6
.
0

6
.
1

4
.
0

5
.
4

2
.
2

6
.
2

5
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
0

4
.
5

4
.
0

3
.
5

6
.
2

2
.
6

6
.
1

2
.
6

3
.
3

4
.
0

4
.
8

5
.
5

6
.
0

6
.
3

6
.
4

3
.
1

4
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
3

5
.
2

5
.
0

4
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
6

4
.
5

6
.
4

4
.
5

6
.
4

4
.
6

4
.
8

4
.
9

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
6

5
.
9

5
.
6

4
.
4

7
.
9

6
.
8

6
.
8

7
.
0

7
.
1

7
.
2

7
.
5

7
.
7

6
.
4

7
.
8

6
.
7

8
.
2

8
.
4

8
.
4

8
.
6

8
.
8

8
.
2

7
.
7

5
.
0

7
.
9

5
.
8

5
.
4

5
.
1

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
8

5
.
0

5
.
1

6
.
8

5
.
5

6
.
8

6
.
2

6
.
4

6
.
5

6
.
6

6
.
8

6
.
8

6
.
8

6
.
8

5
.
2

5
.
4

5
.
4

1
.
5

1
.
8

2
.
1

2
.
7

2
.
9

3
.
3

4
.
4

4
.
6

4
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
2

6
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
6

5
.
1

4
.
9

3
.
8

6
.
6

7
.
4

7
.
6

8
.
0

8
.
1

8
.
2

8
.
1

8
.
1

4
.
2

7
.
3

6
.
3

5
.
7

4
.
7

3
.
8

3
.
1

2
.
2

2
.
8

3
.
6

4
.
2

8
.
0

5
.
3

6
.
1

5
.
8

5
.
3

4
.
8

4
.
6

4
.
6

4
.
8

5
.
1

5
.
2

6
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
2

5
.
0

4
.
9

4
.
7

4
.
7

5
.
0

5
.
0

4
.
9

5
.
9

6
.
6

7
.
1

7
.
4

7
.
0

6
.
7

6
.
3

5
.
6

6
.
3

4
.
9

6
.
4

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
9

5
.
2

5
.
7

6
.
1

5
.
6

5
.
1

5
.
3

1
.
4

1
.
7

2
.
1

2
.
4

2
.
9

3
.
3

4
.
0

5
.
6

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
5

5
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
0

4
.
7

4
.
5

4
.
7

7
.
0

4
.
7

4
.
2

8
.
1

8
.
5

8
.
6

8
.
4

8
.
7

8
.
9

7
.
8

6
.
9

1
.
2

5
.
1

4
.
7

3
.
5

3
.
0

2
.
0

2
.
7

3
.
9

4
.
7

5
.
3

6
.
0

6
.
2

5
.
5

5
.
3

4
.
7

4
.
4

4
.
4

4
.
6

5
.
0

5
.
4

5
.
1

5
.
5

6
.
7

5
.
5

5
.
2

4
.
8

4
.
6

4
.
6

4
.
8

5
.
2

6
.
3

5
.
5

4
.
2

6
.
1

6
.
2

6
.
2

5
.
9

5
.
5

4
.
9

4
.
5

4
.
3

5
.
8

4
.
2

6
.
2

4
.
2

4
.
3

4
.
7

5
.
4

5
.
9

6
.
3

6
.
7

6
.
5

4
.
3

5
.
5

4
.
5

4
.
5

3
.
0

3
.
1

3
.
3

3
.
6

3
.
9

5
.
7

4
.
8

3
.
7

6
.
2

6
.
6

6
.
9

7
.
0

6
.
9

6
.
7

6
.
4

5
.
4

4
.
2

6
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
9

6
.
3

6
.
6

6
.
8

6
.
9

7
.
1

7
.
2

4
.
4

6
.
8

4
.
1

5
.
8

5
.
1

4
.
4

3
.
7

3
.
0

2
.
4

3
.
0

5
.
9

7
.
0

4
.
6

6
.
1

5
.
9

5
.
6

5
.
5

5
.
2

5
.
1

5
.
0

5
.
9

4
.
8

6
.
2

4
.
6

4
.
5

4
.
5

4
.
5

4
.
6

4
.
7

4
.
9

8
.
4

4
.
9

6
.
6

6
.
4

6
.
9

7
.
3

7
.
5

7
.
6

7
.
7

7
.
5

7
.
2

6
.
2

6
.
7

6
.
2

6
.
7

6
.
7

6
.
6

6
.
4

6
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
2

5
.
2

6
.
8

5
.
2

4
.
2

4
.
0

1
.
8

2
.
1

2
.
9

3
.
1

3
.
4

5
.
3

4
.
3

3
.
5

5
.
9

6
.
5

7
.
2

7
.
3

6
.
8

6
.
5

6
.
1

5
.
7

3
.
7

6
.
7

5
.
2

6
.
8

7
.
2

7
.
4

7
.
5

7
.
7

7
.
8

7
.
7

4
.
2

7
.
3

3
.
9

6
.
0

5
.
1

4
.
2

3
.
4

2
.
8

2
.
2

2
.
9

5
.
5

7
.
5

4
.
9

6
.
4

6
.
1

5
.
8

5
.
4

5
.
0

4
.
8

4
.
8

5
.
5

4
.
9

6
.
2

4
.
9

4
.
9

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
9

4
.
9

4
.
9

5
.
7

6
.
1

6
.
7

7
.
1

7
.
6

7
.
9

7
.
5

7
.
3

6
.
9

6
.
5

5
.
9

6
.
4

5
.
7

5
.
7

5
.
6

5
.
6

5
.
6

5
.
7

6
.
0

5
.
8

6
.
3

5
.
9

5
.
3

4
.
9

5
.
3

5
.
7

6
.
0

6
.
0

6
.
0

4
.
8

6
.
0

5
.
0

5
.
9

6
.
6

7
.
2

7
.
5

7
.
9

7
.
8

7
.
1

6
.
6

6
.
1

9
.
8

5
.
8

5
.
5

5
.
1

5
.
0

5
.
2

5
.
8

6
.
6

4
.
7

8
.
3

5
.
4

1
1
.
9

1
2
.
4

1
1
.
9

1
0
.
2

7
.
7

6
.
5

5
.
8

5
.
3

7
.
4

4
.
9

3
.
9

4
.
1

4
.
3

4
.
4

4
.
6

4
.
7

4
.
8

6
.
2

5
.
0

3
.
3

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
8

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
4

8
.
2

5
.
0

3
.
7

6
.
0

4
.
7

4
.
2

3
.
8

3
.
8

3
.
8

3
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
7

3
.
9

3
.
5

3
.
4

1
.
5

1
.
9

2
.
3

2
.
7

2
.
9

3
.
1

5
.
9

3
.
9

5
.
7

5
.
5

5
.
9

6
.
3

6
.
5

6
.
7

6
.
7

6
.
5

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
6

5
.
9

6
.
2

6
.
5

7
.
1

7
.
2

7
.
0

7
.
1

5
.
9

6
.
3

1
0
.
6

6
.
4

6
.
0

5
.
5

5
.
3

5
.
5

6
.
1

7
.
0

7
.
7

5
.
3

9
.
7

5
.
4

1
0
.
7

1
0
.
3

9
.
2

7
.
6

6
.
7

6
.
2

5
.
9

5
.
7

8
.
5

5
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
7

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
9

5
.
1

5
.
4

6
.
8

5
.
8

3
.
9

5
.
7

5
.
5

5
.
2

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
7

6
.
0

5
.
1

5
.
6

4
.
2

5
.
0

4
.
3

4
.
0

4
.
0

4
.
1

4
.
4

4
.
6

4
.
7

4
.
5

4
.
6

4
.
2

3
.
8

3
.
2

1
.
8

2
.
2

2
.
6

3
.
1

3
.
6

6
.
0

4
.
7

1
2
.
0

5
.
4

4
.
7

4
.
9

5
.
1

5
.
7

6
.
6

8
.
8

4
.
3

1
2
.
2

4
.
2

9
.
9

7
.
3

6
.
3

5
.
6

4
.
9

4
.
4

4
.
0

3
.
6

1
1
.
5

8
.
6

4
.
9

5
.
5

6
.
4

8
.
0

1
0
.
5

1
4
.
8

1
7
.
8

4
.
5

1
2
.
3

2
.
9

6
.
5

5
.
1

4
.
4

4
.
0

3
.
8

3
.
8

3
.
9

4
.
0

1
6
.
8

2
.
1

2
.
7

2
.
7

4
.
3

4
.
5

3
.
6

3
.
0

2
.
6

3
.
3

2
.
2

3
.
9

1
.
6

1
.
9

2
.
0

1
.
9

1
.
8

1
.
7

1
.
6

1
.
6

2
.
3

3
.
5

4
.
3

2
.
7

2
.
6

8
.
0

5
.
9

4
.
5

3
.
8

3
.
5

2
.
9

3
.
2

3
.
2

3
.
2

3
.
0

2
.
7

2
.
5

7
.
8

6
.
2

4
.
8

3
.
1

3
.
3

7
.
5

4
.
7

5
.
0

5
.
2

5
.
5

5
.
6

5
.
6

5
.
6

5
.
0

6
.
3

4
.
3

8
.
9

9
.
3

9
.
5

8
.
6

7
.
2

6
.
6

6
.
0

4
.
5

5
.
8

1
5
.
0

4
.
9

4
.
7

4
.
6

4
.
9

5
.
4

6
.
1

7
.
0

8
.
2

4
.
4

1
4
.
1

4
.
3

1
4
.
5

1
2
.
1

8
.
0

6
.
4

5
.
5

4
.
9

4
.
5

4
.
4

1
0
.
4

4
.
3

3
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
9

4
.
0

4
.
0

4
.
1

5
.
5

4
.
3

3
.
4

4
.
3

4
.
4

4
.
4

4
.
4

4
.
3

4
.
3

4
.
3

6
.
9

4
.
2

1
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
6

3
.
5

3
.
4

3
.
3

3
.
2

3
.
1

3
.
0

3
.
9

1
.
6

3
.
7

2
.
2

2
.
4

2
.
5

2
.
7

2
.
8

3
.
0

3
.
2

4
.
3

1
.
3

5
.
5

6
.
6

5
.
2

5
.
2

5
.
4

5
.
6

5
.
8

5
.
8

5
.
7

5
.
8

6
.
2

5
.
3

5
.
0

4
.
7

4
.
5

4
.
5

4
.
8

5
.
4

5
.
9

5
.
9

7
.
3

8
.
7

8
.
7

8
.
5

8
.
2

8
.
1

8
.
1

8
.
0

5
.
4

7
.
6

6
.
5

6
.
8

6
.
4

6
.
4

6
.
7

6
.
8

6
.
8

6
.
7

6
.
5

7
.
8

5
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
8

6
.
2

6
.
4

6
.
9

6
.
8

6
.
5

6
.
2

6
.
1

6
.
4

6
.
2

6
.
8

7
.
1

7
.
2

7
.
3

7
.
1

7
.
0

6
.
7

6
.
5

3
.
0

7
.
7

5
.
8

5
.
3

4
.
4

3
.
6

3
.
0

2
.
6

2
.
3

5
.
7

2
.
4

6
.
1

3
.
7

4
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
9

6
.
4

7
.
0

6
.
8

6
.
7

1
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
3

5
.
2

5
.
1

5
.
0

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
6

3
.
5

5
.
0

5
.
4

6
.
0

6
.
3

6
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
5

4
.
7

8
.
5

4
.
7

6
.
5

8
.
4

8
.
5

8
.
0

7
.
6

7
.
2

6
.
7

6
.
5

6
.
5

5
.
3

6
.
7

5
.
3

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
7

5
.
4

5
.
3

5
.
2

5
.
4

3
.
1

6
.
6

7
.
1

6
.
4

6
.
3

6
.
1

6
.
0

6
.
3

6
.
7

7
.
0

4
.
0

7
.
1

6
.
2

7
.
0

6
.
7

6
.
5

6
.
3

6
.
4

6
.
8

7
.
3

6
.
2

7
.
1

7
.
4

2
.
7

2
.
2

1
.
8

2
.
6

3
.
2

3
.
9

4
.
7

5
.
6

6
.
4

6
.
6

6
.
4

7
.
0

6
.
4

6
.
1

5
.
7

5
.
4

5
.
6

5
.
9

8
.
1

6
.
2

5
.
5

6
.
3

6
.
7

6
.
9

7
.
4

7
.
5

6
.
8

6
.
4

5
.
7

5
.
5

6
.
1

5
.
7

6
.
0

6
.
5

6
.
8

6
.
7

6
.
8

6
.
7

6
.
8

6
.
0

9
.
8

6
.
2

5
.
9

5
.
7

5
.
8

6
.
4

7
.
3

7
.
9

8
.
8

5
.
9

1
0
.
0

5
.
9

9
.
5

8
.
7

7
.
7

7
.
1

6
.
9

6
.
7

6
.
4

5
.
1

1
0
.
0

6
.
4

5
.
7

5
.
6

5
.
4

5
.
2

5
.
2

5
.
5

5
.
9

6
.
1

6
.
4

4
.
7

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
6

5
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
3

6
.
6

7
.
1

6
.
1

4
.
3

4
.
5

4
.
2

4
.
2

4
.
4

4
.
8

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
3

5
.
6

4
.
9

5
.
2

3
.
6

2
.
9

2
.
1

2
.
5

3
.
0

3
.
6

4
.
2

7
.
2

5
.
1

6
.
0

7
.
0

6
.
9

6
.
6

6
.
3

5
.
9

5
.
4

5
.
3

4
.
3

5
.
6

6
.
4

6
.
3

6
.
3

6
.
1

6
.
0

5
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
0

6
.
5

5
.
4

7
.
9

7
.
0

6
.
6

7
.
4

7
.
9

8
.
4

9
.
0

9
.
2

9
.
1

6
.
9

8
.
4

6
.
7

7
.
6

7
.
6

7
.
5

7
.
2

6
.
8

6
.
4

6
.
2

4
.
3

8
.
9

6
.
5

6
.
2

5
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
1

6
.
4

4
.
6

6
.
9

5
.
9

6
.
4

6
.
0

5
.
7

6
.
1

6
.
7

7
.
0

7
.
5

7
.
7

7
.
1

2
.
7

4
.
6

5
.
2

5
.
6

5
.
9

6
.
2

6
.
0

5
.
4

4
.
9

6
.
3

3
.
2

6
.
3

2
.
3

2
.
3

2
.
8

3
.
3

4
.
1

4
.
9

5
.
5

6
.
0

4
.
0

1
.
4

9
.
5

3
.
7

3
.
7

3
.
6

3
.
3

3
.
0

2
.
7

3
.
2

1
.
8

2
.
8

1
.
1

1
.
3

2
.
3

3
.
6

4
.
4

4
.
9

4
.
6

4
.
0

2
.
2

9
.
9

1
2
.
0

8
.
0

6
.
1

5
.
1

5
.
5

7
.
0

1
0
.
4

3
.
4

1
4
.
3

2
.
7

6
.
1

3
.
8

2
.
4

1
.
6

1
.
3

1
.
6

1
.
9

2
.
4

1
4
.
4

5
.
1

7
.
1

9
.
5

1
0
.
1

9
.
5

7
.
5

4
.
4

3
.
4

3
.
5

3
.
8

8
.
2

8
.
3

1
0
.
3

1
0
.
4

8
.
6

5
.
6

4
.
6

4
.
6

7
.
9

3
.
3

2
.
1

5
.
5

2
.
4

2
.
3

2
.
2

2
.
2

2
.
2

2
.
3

2
.
3

7
.
0

2
.
0

7
.
8

2
.
2

2
.
6

3
.
0

3
.
6

4
.
4

5
.
8

7
.
3

3
.
0

2
.
1

2
.
7

5
.
8

3
.
7

2
.
3

1
.
5

1
.
7

2
.
0

2
.
3

1
.
0

2
.
6

1
2
.
6

2
.
8

2
.
7

2
.
6

2
.
4

2
.
2

1
.
9

1
.
6

1
1
.
9

2
.
5

6
.
7

3
.
2

3
.
0

2
.
7

2
.
5

2
.
4

2
.
5

2
.
6

2
.
8

8
.
5

5
.
1

1
2
.
5

9
.
3

1
1
.
0

9
.
7

4
.
6

5
.
1

6
.
7

8
.
9

1
.
4

3
.
6

1
0
.
2

3
.
1

4
.
0

5
.
0

6
.
7

9
.
1

1
0
.
3

9
.
7

1
.
2

8
.
3

2
.
2

1
2
.
6

1
1
.
5

7
.
5

5
.
2

3
.
9

3
.
5

4
.
1

1
1
.
0

8
.
4

2
.
7

2
.
2

4
.
4

5
.
9

7
.
0

6
.
8

5
.
8

4
.
7

3
.
8

2
.
6

2
.
9

2
.
3

2
.
6

2
.
7

2
.
7

2
.
7

2
.
6

2
.
4

2
.
2

7
.
7

3
.
3

4
.
6

5
.
7

3
.
2

3
.
6

4
.
0

4
.
0

4
.
0

4
.
3

1
.
3

4
.
9

1
.
3

4
.
1

3
.
1

2
.
6

2
.
5

2
.
7

3
.
4

4
.
6

5
.
1

4
.
9

2
.
4

2
.
7

2
.
2

1
.
8

1
.
4

1
.
0

1
.
6

2
.
0

1
.
9

2
.
4

3
.
7

2
.
3

2
.
2

2
.
0

1
.
9

1
.
8

1
.
7

1
.
6

1
.
4

2
.
3

1
.
8

4
.
7

3
.
7

2
.
9

2
.
4

1
.
9

1
.
5

0
.
9

5
.
1

1
.
6

6
.
4

1
.
9

1
.
9

1
.
9

1
.
8

1
.
7

1
.
6

1
.
5

1
.
4

1
.
3

1
.
9

4
.
8

3
.
1

3
.
1

3
.
6

4
.
6

4
.
9

4
.
7

4
.
2

5
.
4

2
.
0

6
.
0

2
.
3

2
.
8

3
.
3

4
.
2

5
.
1

5
.
6

6
.
1

4
.
7

2
.
9

2
.
7

1
.
6

1
.
2

1
.
2

1
.
9

2
.
7

3
.
1

3
.
4

2
.
4

3
.
0

3
.
0

2
.
5

2
.
3

2
.
1

2
.
0

1
.
9

1
.
8

1
.
8

3
.
3

3
.
3

3
.
2

1
0
.
9

9
.
1

4
.
8

3
.
1

2
.
1

1
.
5

1
.
5

1
.
8

2
.
0

2
.
7

2
.
4

3
.
8

4
.
3

4
.
6

4
.
7

4
.
5

4
.
1

3
.
6

4
.
4

2
.
2

2
.
5

4
.
7

6
.
6

7
.
4

7
.
3

6
.
2

3
.
9

2
.
6

1
.
6

2
.
1

4
.
6

3
.
0

3
.
7

4
.
5

5
.
0

5
.
3

5
.
3

5
.
2

3
.
2

1
.
7

3
.
0

5
.
1

5
.
5

5
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
7

6
.
9

7
.
1

6
.
7

3
.
9

3
.
7

3
.
8

2
.
9

3
.
2

4
.
2

6
.
5

7
.
5

7
.
6

6
.
8

4
.
2

5
.
6

0
.
3

3
.
2

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
3

0
.
0

0
.
2

0
.
2

0
.
2

0
.
1

1
.
2

1
.
9

2
.
9

3
.
4

0
.
0

2
.
7

0
.
2

0
.
2

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
9

1
.
5

2
.
1

0
.
0

2
.
6

3
.
4

2
.
6

2
.
6

2
.
5

2
.
5

2
.
5

2
.
7

3
.
0

0
.
0

2
.
4

5
.
6

0
.
4

0
.
4

0
.
3

0
.
3

0
.
2

1
.
3

2
.
3

3
.
8

4
.
8

0
.
0

5
.
3

4
.
6

4
.
0

3
.
5

3
.
3

3
.
3

3
.
6

3
.
8

3
.
8

0
.
0

0
.
0

3
.
2

3
.
0

2
.
8

2
.
9

3
.
2

3
.
5

3
.
5

0
.
2

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

3
.
7

3
.
5

0
.
1

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
1

0
.
1

1
.
7

0
.
1

0
.
0

0
.
6

0
.
9

1
.
1

1
.
3

1
.
4

1
.
5

1
.
6

0
.
2

0
.
1

0
.
5

0
.
5

0
.
6

0
.
7

0
.
8

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
1

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
7

0
.
8

1
.
0

1
.
1

1
.
1

1
.
2

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

1
.
9

2
.
0

2
.
0

2
.
1

2
.
1

2
.
1

2
.
2

1
.
7

0
.
0

1
.
2

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

3
.
8

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

0
.
0

1
.
7

0
.
0

1
.
5

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
8

0
.
0

0
.
0

3
.
7

1
4
.
2

1
1
.
9

9
.
0

6
.
4

4
.
8

4
.
0

3
.
7

2
.
6

3
.
7

1
.
8

3
.
6

3
.
6

3
.
4

3
.
0

2
.
6

2
.
5

2
.
6

2
.
0

3
.
6

1
.
6

4
.
0

1
.
9

1
.
0

0
.
9

2
.
0

2
.
8

2
.
1

1
.
5

7
.
1

1
.
6

3
.
0

1
.
3

1
.
2

1
.
1

0
.
9

0
.
7

0
.
5

1
.
5

2
.
9

1
.
0

9
.
8

1
.
6

1
.
3

1
.
1

0
.
8

0
.
6

1
.
4

1
.
9

2
.
6

7
.
8

2
.
0

1
0
.
4

8
.
2

6
.
0

4
.
5

3
.
7

3
.
3

3
.
2

1
.
1

4
.
0

3
.
0

2
.
9

3
.
9

1
.
9

4
.
1

5
.
0

6
.
2

4
.
5

4
.
4

1
.
7

4
.
3

1
.
9

2
.
0

1
.
3

1
.
9

2
.
0

2
.
1

2
.
1

2
.
1

1
.
4

5
.
8

3
.
7

1
.
9

4
.
5

6
.
4

7
.
9

8
.
2

7
.
0

5
.
4

2
.
6

3
.
8

0
.
4

3
.
8

3
.
9

4
.
1

4
.
4

4
.
1

3
.
7

3
.
4

2
.
7

4
.
4

0
.
1

3
.
3

3
.
5

3
.
2

0
.
2

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
0

0
.
0

1
.
3

0
.
0

0
.
3

0
.
1

0
.
2

0
.
1

0
.
7

0
.
6

0
.
5

0
.
4

0
.
6

0
.
0

3
.
9

1
1
.
3

8
.
7

6
.
3

4
.
8

4
.
1

3
.
8

3
.
8

2
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
5

3
.
8

3
.
6

3
.
3

2
.
8

2
.
6

2
.
6

2
.
5

2
.
5

3
.
8

0
.
5

0
.
6

0
.
4

0
.
2

0
.
1

0
.
1

0
.
2

0
.
5

0
.
7

1
1
.
3

0
.
5

8
.
4

0
.
9

0
.
8

0
.
7

0
.
6

0
.
5

1
.
4

1
.
8

4
.
1

0
.
6

2
.
8

1
.
4

1
.
9

2
.
7

5
.
8

1
2
.
0

1
2
.
5

9
.
7

3
.
2

4
.
0

4
.
0

2
.
0

1
.
5

1
.
1

0
.
8

0
.
6

0
.
5

3
.
1

3
.
2

6
.
2

8
.
2

4
.
3

4
.
9

5
.
4

5
.
9

6
.
5

6
.
9

7
.
5

1
.
6

8
.
0

3
.
4

8
.
6

8
.
8

8
.
6

8
.
2

7
.
6

6
.
7

5
.
7

4
.
9

7
.
8

4
.
7

4
.
9

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
6

4
.
3

4
.
0

3
.
8

3
.
3

4
.
2

3
.
8

5
.
1

5
.
3

5
.
4

5
.
4

5
.
2

4
.
9

4
.
5

4
.
1

3
.
9

2
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
5

3
.
4

3
.
4

3
.
5

3
.
4

3
.
4

3
.
3

4
.
6

3
.
0

4
.
3

2
.
7

2
.
6

2
.
6

2
.
7

2
.
8

3
.
0

3
.
3

3
.
4

3
.
2

8
.
1

4
.
4

4
.
7

5
.
1

5
.
4

5
.
5

6
.
1

7
.
3

3
.
3

7
.
7

3
.
6

8
.
5

8
.
5

8
.
4

8
.
0

7
.
3

6
.
3

5
.
3

4
.
0

7
.
5

4
.
0

1
.
3

0
.
8

0
.
6

0
.
5

1
.
0

3
.
3

3
.
3

3
.
4

4
.
0

3
.
8

3
.
7

4
.
2

4
.
3

4
.
3

4
.
1

4
.
0

3
.
8

3
.
6

1
.
5

3
.
6

4
.
3

4
.
0

4
.
1

4
.
0

3
.
9

3
.
9

3
.
7

3
.
6

4
.
3

3
.
9

3
.
3

4
.
6

4
.
8

4
.
9

4
.
8

4
.
8

4
.
5

4
.
1

4
.
8

3
.
6

1
.
5

1
.
8

2
.
5

5
.
8

1
1
.
5

1
2
.
3

9
.
5

6
.
3

4
.
1

3
.
8

2
.
0

3
.
5

1
.
1

0
.
8

0
.
6

0
.
5

2
.
0

2
.
6

2
.
9

3
.
8

2
.
8

4
.
8

1
.
7

2
.
1

2
.
4

3
.
0

3
.
5

4
.
0

4
.
4

5
.
5

4
.
8

0
.
9

4
.
6

4
.
5

4
.
3

4
.
2

4
.
3

4
.
6

5
.
0

8
.
6

4
.
7

3
.
4

4
.
0

8
.
5

8
.
8

8
.
9

8
.
0

7
.
3

6
.
5

5
.
4

1
.
4

3
.
9

1
.
1

1
.
8

2
.
4

4
.
4

5
.
7

6
.
8

6
.
8

5
.
7

5
.
5

4
.
6

5
.
3

4
.
2

4
.
2

4
.
6

5
.
1

5
.
5

5
.
7

6
.
0

5
.
2

5
.
6

5
.
6

4
.
8

4
.
5

4
.
4

4
.
6

5
.
1

5
.
9

6
.
6

0
.
4

5
.
9

3
.
9

5
.
4

5
.
1

4
.
7

4
.
2

3
.
9

3
.
8

3
.
7

3
.
7

4
.
5

3
.
7

5
.
1

4
.
2

4
.
9

5
.
5

5
.
9

6
.
4

6
.
4

5
.
9

8
.
2

3
.
7

3
.
9

3
.
8

6
.
7

8
.
7

9
.
7

8
.
6

3
.
7

3
.
8

4
.
4

3
.
8

3
.
7

3
.
8

3
.
8

3
.
9

4
.
1

4
.
2

4
.
3

4
.
5

8
.
7

3
.
8

8
.
8

1
.
9

5
.
5

6
.
1

6
.
7

7
.
3

7
.
6

7
.
9

8
.
3

2
.
1

8
.
6

1
.
7

8
.
8

8
.
3

7
.
7

6
.
9

6
.
0

5
.
1

4
.
4

4
.
2

8
.
4

4
.
3

4
.
4

5
.
0

5
.
4

5
.
8

6
.
4

6
.
1

5
.
6

4
.
5

4
.
7

4
.
3

4
.
2

4
.
4

5
.
0

5
.
9

6
.
5

7
.
3

8
.
2

8
.
2

5
.
3

4
.
3

4
.
0

3
.
7

3
.
4

3
.
2

3
.
1

3
.
1

3
.
2

3
.
2

4
.
1

3
.
7

4
.
0

4
.
9

5
.
3

5
.
4

5
.
5

5
.
4

5
.
1

4
.
7

4
.
2

3
.
4

0
.
8

1
.
0

1
.
5

1
.
5

1
.
4

1
.
4

1
.
3

1
.
2

1
.
4

0
.
9

1
.
3

0
.
8

0
.
7

2
.
5

3
.
2

3
.
9

4
.
5

5
.
2

5
.
9

1
.
0

6
.
4

2
.
3

2
.
9

3
.
5

4
.
1

4
.
8

5
.
6

6
.
2

1
.
5

6
.
6

6
.
9

6
.
0

5
.
2

4
.
2

3
.
3

2
.
6

2
.
1

0
.
8

1
.
1

6
.
6

7
.
1

0
.
8

0
.
7

0
.
6

2
.
7

3
.
4

4
.
2

5
.
0

6
.
6

6
.
5

1
.
1

7
.
3

7
.
1

6
.
7

6
.
1

5
.
4

4
.
4

3
.
6

2
.
8

5
.
8

1
.
3

2
.
3

6
.
6

6
.
1

5
.
3

4
.
4

3
.
5

2
.
7

2
.
1

0
.
9

1
.
0

1
.
0

1
.
5

1
.
5

1
.
5

1
.
5

1
.
4

1
.
3

1
.
2

6
.
9

0
.
8

3
.
7

2
.
4

2
.
4

2
.
8

3
.
2

3
.
3

3
.
2

2
.
1

4
.
0

3
.
1

3
.
5

4
.
6

5
.
5

6
.
0

6
.
6

7
.
0

6
.
4

5
.
8

2
.
2

2
.
6

3
.
0

7
.
8

1
.
1

1
.
5

2
.
4

2
.
7

2
.
1

3
.
3

3
.
5

2
.
8

3
.
3

3
.
3

2
.
5

2
.
1

2
.
1

2
.
2

2
.
6

3
.
2

3
.
5

3
.
1

3
.
5

2
.
3

1
.
5

2
.
4

2
.
4

2
.
3

2
.
0

1
.
7

1
.
7

5
.
1

2
.
0

1
.
1

2
.
4

2
.
5

2
.
4

2
.
1

1
.
9

1
.
9

2
.
1

1
.
1

1
.
7

1
.
5

2
.
5

2
.
0

0
.
8

1
.
1

1
.
4

1
.
5

1
.
6

1
.
6

1
.
5

1
.
6

1
.
8

1
.
4

1
.
3

1
.
2

1
.
1

1
.
0

0
.
9

0
.
9

2
.
3

1
.
6

7
.
9

1
.
1

0
.
9

0
.
7

0
.
5

0
.
4

3
.
7

4
.
3

3
.
1

7
.
3

2
.
3

8
.
1

8
.
6

8
.
7

7
.
7

6
.
9

6
.
0

4
.
8

7
.
7

6
.
6

1
.
2

2
.
2

8
.
4

8
.
4

7
.
6

7
.
0

6
.
1

4
.
9

4
.
0

1
.
4

2
.
6

1
.
7

1
.
7

2
.
8

3
.
5

4
.
0

4
.
0

3
.
3

2
.
8

1
.
2

3
.
3

1
.
7

8
.
4

8
.
3

7
.
6

6
.
7

5
.
7

4
.
5

3
.
6

3
.
8

1
.
3

7
.
6

3
.
4

6
.
2

8
.
0

9
.
0

8
.
0

5
.
5

3
.
7

2
.
6

2
.
8

1
.
3

1
.
7

3
.
7

4
.
8

5
.
9

5
.
9

4
.
8

3
.
8

2
.
9

8
.
3

1
.
7

8
.
1

1
.
0

0
.
7

0
.
6

0
.
4

4
.
0

6
.
8

7
.
1

7
.
0

2
.
2

0
.
9

7
.
6

7
.
6

7
.
3

6
.
7

6
.
0

5
.
2

4
.
4

1
.
4

2
.
8

5
.
4

1
.
3

1
.
7

1
.
9

2
.
1

2
.
1

2
.
0

1
.
8

7
.
9

3
.
6

1
.
0

1
.
2

1
.
4

1
.
6

1
.
7

1
.
7

1
.
6

1
.
6

1
.
4

7
.
3

1
.
1

6
.
5

0
.
8

0
.
7

0
.
6

0
.
5

3
.
0

3
.
7

4
.
5

1
.
2

1
.
3

1
.
3

1
.
5

2
.
2

2
.
5

2
.
7

2
.
7

2
.
5

2
.
2

1
.
6

1
.
5

3
.
4

1
.
0

0
.
8

0
.
6

0
.
5

0
.
4

3
.
5

4
.
1

4
.
9

1
.
9

7
.
7

1
.
0

0
.
8

0
.
7

0
.
5

0
.
5

3
.
2

3
.
9

4
.
7

1
.
0

7
.
3

2
.
8

7
.
9

7
.
9

7
.
4

6
.
9

6
.
0

5
.
0

4
.
2

0
.
8

6
.
1

0
.
1
 
f
c

0
.
1
 
f
c

0
.
5
 
f
c

0
.
5
 
f
c

1
 
f
c

1
 
f
c

1
 
f
c

L
u
m
i
n
a
i
r
e
 
S
c
h
e
d
u
l
e

S
y
m
b
o
l

Q
t
y

L
u
m
i
n
a
i
r
e
 
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
u
m
m
a
r
y

L
u
m
N
o

L
a
b
e
l

X
Y

L
a
b
e
l

A
r
r
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t

L
L
F

Z
O
r
i
e
n
t

T
i
l
t

1

C
a
l
c
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
S
u
m
m
a
r
y

L
a
b
e
l

D
e
s
c
r
i
p
t
i
o
n

L
u
m
.
 
W
a
t
t
s

T
o
t
a
l
 
W
a
t
t
s

L
u
m
.
 
L
u
m
e
n
s

0
4
-
5
W
Q
 
2

9
1
2

C
a
l
c
T
y
p
e

U
n
i
t
s

4
6
9

3
0

2
6

0

A
v
g

M
a
x

M
i
n

A
v
g
/
M
i
n

2
C
7
5
 
9
0

1
0
2
0

4
4
8

3
0

1
8
0

4
5

M
a
x
/
M
i
n

3
0
4
-
5
W
Q

1
0
2
0

C
a
l
c
P
t
s
 
@
 
G
r
a
d
e

I
l
l
u
m
i
n
a
n
c
e

F
c

4
.
6
1

1
7
.
8

4
4
8

0
.
0

N
.
A
.

N
.
A
.

3
0

0
0

4
0
4
-
5
W
Q

S
I
N
G
L
E

0
.
9
1
2

4

F
R
O
N
T
 
P
A
R
K
I
N
G

I
l
l
u
m
i
n
a
n
c
e

N
V
N
-
A
F
-
0
4
-
L
E
D
-
U
-
5
W
Q

2
2
5

9
0
0

2
5
9
6
5

0
4
-
5
W
Q

8
2
0

4
4
6

3
0

2
7
0

0

5
U
1
0
0

7
8
2

4
4
4

3
0

2
7
0

4
5

F
c

5
.
8
8

6
U
1
0
0
 
2

5
5
7

1
7
.
8

2
.
5

2
.
3
5

7
.
1
2

4
4
0

3
0

2
7
0

4
5

7
C
7
5
 
9
0

7
2
8
.
5

4
3
8
.
5

3
0

2
7
0

4
5

8
C
7
5
 
9
0

6
3
7

4
3
4
.
5

3
0

2
7
0

4
5

9
0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
7
3
.
5

3
9
0
.
5

3
0

1

0
0

0
4
-
5
W
Q
 
2

B
A
C
K
-
B
A
C
K

0
.
9
1
2

N
V
N
-
A
F
-
0
4
-
L
E
D
-
U
-
5
W
Q

2
2
5

4
5
0

2
5
9
6
5

1
0

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

1
8
5

3
1
9

3
0

9
0

0

1
1

0
4
-
5
W
Q

1
0
1
6
.
5

2
8
1

3
0

0

1
6

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

B
A
C
K
-
B
A
C
K

0
.
9
1
2

N
V
N
-
A
F
-
0
6
-
L
E
D
-
U
-
5
W
Q

3
3
3

1
0
6
5
6

3
8
3
3
6

4
C
7
5
 
9
0

2
 
@
 
9
0
°

0
.
8
6
4

U
F
L
D
-
L
-
C
7
5
-
X
-
U
-
6
6

1
7
9

1
4
3
2

2
6
2
1
0

1
U
1
0
0

S
I
N
G
L
E

0
.
8
6
4

U
F
L
D
-
L
-
C
1
0
0
-
X
-
U
-
6
6

2
5
2

2
5
2

3
4
2
9
1

3
U
1
0
0
 
2

2
 
@
 
9
0
°

0
.
8
6
4

U
F
L
D
-
L
-
C
1
0
0
-
X
-
U
-
6
6

2
5
2

1
5
1
2

3
4
2
9
1

0

1
2

C
7
5
 
9
0

1
0
1
6
.
5

2
8
1

3
0

1
8
0

4
5

2
4

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

5
1
6

1
4
5
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
5

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

6
8
2

1
4
5
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
6

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

7
9
4
.
5

1
4
3
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
7

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

3
9
7
.
5

1
4
0
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
8

U
1
0
0
 
2

6
5
9

9
1
.
5

3
0

9
0

4
5

2
9

U
1
0
0
 
2

4
4
1

1
3

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

2
8
2

2
6
6

3
0

0
0

1
4

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

4
0
0

2
6
4
.
5

3
0

0
0

1
5

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

2
1
4

2
5
8
.
5

3
0

9
0

0

1
6

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

5
1
7

2
5
1

3
0

0
0

1
7

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

6
8
4
.
5

2
3
1

3
0

0
0

1
8

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

7
9
7

2
2
7

3
0

0
0

1
9

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

6
0
2
.
5

1
8
3
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
0

0
4
-
5
W
Q

1
0
1
4
.
5

1
7
9
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
1

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

9
8
0

1
6
3
.
5

3
0

9
0

0

2
2

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

2
7
8
.
5

1
6
2
.
5

3
0

0
0

2
3

0
6
-
5
W
Q
 
2

8
8
9

1
4
8
.
5

3
0

9
0

0

7
8

3
0

9
0

4
5

F
R
O
N
T
 
P
A
R
K
I
N
G

I
l
l
u
m
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
(
F
c
)

A
v
e
r
a
g
e
 
=
 
5
.
8
8

M
a
x
i
m
u
m
 
=
 
1
7
.
8

M
i
n
i
m
u
m
 
=
 
2
.
5

A
v
g
/
M
i
n
 
R
a
t
i
o
 
=
 
2
.
3
5

M
a
x
/
M
i
n
 
R
a
t
i
o
 
=
 
7
.
1
2


